
UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION IX 

In the matter of: U.S. EPA Docket No. 

CWA-09-2024-0083 

Aloha Petroleum LLC 

60 Hobron Lane 

Kahului, Maui, Hawaii 

CWA SECTION 311 

CLASS II ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND 

FINAL ORDER PURSUANT TO 

Respondent. 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18 

A. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

Preliminary Statement 

1. This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CA/FO") is issued under the authority vested

in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") by Section

311(b)(6)(A) and (B)(ii) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA" or "Act"), 33 U.S.C.

§ 1321(b)(6)(A), (b)(6)(B)(ii), as amended by the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, and under the

authority provided by Section 22.18(b)(2) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing

the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or

Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2). The Administrator has delegated these

authorities to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region IX, pursuant to Delegation 2-52A

1200 TN 350 (January 18, 2017), who has in turn delegated them to the EPA Region IX

Director of the Enforcement Division (now the "Enforcement & Compliance Assurance

Division") ("Complainant"), pursuant to Delegation R9 2-52A (March 8, 2017).

2. Complainant initiates this proceeding Aloha Petroleum LLC ("Respondent") for alleged

violations of Section 311(b)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(3). Complainant and

Respondent are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties."

3. This CA/FO simultaneously commences and concludes this penalty proceeding, as

authorized by 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3).

4. The Parties agree that settlement of this matter is consistent with the CWA's objectives,

in the public interest, and the most appropriate means of resolving this matter.

B. Statutory and Regulatory Framework
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5. Section 311(b)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(b)(3), prohibits "[t]he discharge of oil or

hazardous substances into or upon the navigable waters of the United States [and]

adjoining shorelines ... in such quantities as may be harmful.. .. "

6. "Discharge" is defined in Section 311(a)(2) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(2), to include,

in pertinent part, "any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, or

dumping .... " 

7. "Oil" is defined in Section 31l(a)(l) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(l), to include, in

pertinent part, "oil of any kind or in any form, including, but not limited to, petroleum,

fuel oil, sludge .... " 

8. "Navigable waters" are defined in Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).

9. Section 311(j)(l)(C) and 311(j)(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(j)(l)(C) and (j)(5), provide

that the President shall issue regulations "establishing procedures, methods, and

equipment and other requirements for equipment to prevent discharges of oil ... from

onshore facilities . .. and to contain such discharges .... " 

10. Initially by Executive Order 11548 (July 20, 1970), 35 Fed. Reg. 11677 (July 22, 1970), and

most recently by Section 2(b)(l) of Executive Order 12777 (October 18, 1991), 56 Fed.

Reg. 54757 (October 22, 1991), the President delegated to EPA the authorities under

Section 311(j)(l)(C) and (j)(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(j)(l)(C) and (j)(5), to issue

regulations.

11. EPA subsequently promulgated regulations, codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 112 (the "Oil

Pollution Prevention Regulations"), pursuant to these delegated statutory authorities and

pursuant to its authorities under the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.

12. The Oil Pollution Prevention Regulations establish certain procedures, methods, and

requirements, which except as provided in 40 C.F.R. § 112.l(b), apply to an owner or

operator of a non-transportation-related onshore facility, which, due to its location,

could reasonably be expected to discharge oil in quantities that may be harmful, as

described in 40 C.F.R. Part 110, into or upon the navigable waters of the United States or

adjoining shorelines. See 40 C.F.R. § 112.l(b).

13. "Owner or operator" is defined in Section 311(a)(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(6), as

"in the case of an onshore facility, . . .  any person owning or operating such onshore

facility," as well as in the implementing regulations, 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.

14. "Person" is defined in Section 311(a)(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(7), as "an

individual, firm, corporation, association, and a partnership," as well as in the

implementing regulations, 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.
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"person" within the meaning of Sections 311(a)(7) and 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§§ 1321(a)(7) and 1362(5).

22. Respondent was and still is the "owner or operator" of an onshore bulk storage/

distribution facility for oil at 60 Hobron Lane, Kahului, Maui, Hawaii ("Facility") within the

meaning of Section 311(a)(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(6), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.

23. The Facility is "non-transportation-related" within the meaning of 40 CF.R. § 112.2.

24. The Facility is an "onshore facility" within the meaning of Section 311(a)(10) of the CWA,

33 U.S.C. § 1321(a)(10), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.

25. The Facility stores "oil" within the meaning of Section 311(a)(l) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1321(a)(l), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.

26. The Facility has several above-ground oil storage tanks with an aggregate maximum

above-ground oil storage capacity exceeding 2,700,000 gallons. Primary containment for

the oil stored at the Facility is provided by bulk storage aboveground storage tanks.

27. The Facility is located approximately 250 feet from Kahului Harbor, which is connected

directly to the Pacific Ocean, with surface flow and area storm drains that discharge to

Kahului Harbor. Kahului Harbor is a "navigable water" of the United States as defined in

Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2.

28. The Facility is a non-transportation-related facility that, due to its location, could

reasonably be expected, at the time of inspection on February 9, 2023, to discharge oil

from an aboveground container to a navigable water of the United States or its adjoining

shorelines in a harmful quantity (an "SPCC-regulated facility").

29. Pursuant to the CWA, Executive Order 12777, and 40 C.F.R. § 112.2, Respondent, as an

owner or operator of a SPCC-regulated facility, is subject to the Oil Pollution Prevention

Regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 112.

30. Because the Facility could cause "substantial harm" within the meaning of 40 C.F.R.

§ 112.20(f)(ii), the Facility is additionally subject to the specific regulations for an FRP set

forth in 40 C.F.R. § 112.20.

31. On February 9, 2023, EPA Region 9 inspected the Facility to evaluate compliance with the

requirements of Section 311 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 1321, and with the SPCC and FRP

requirements of the Oil Pollution Prevention Regulations, codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 112.

D. Alleged Violations

COUNT I 
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(Failure Provide Appropriate Containment to Prevent a Discharge) 

32. Paragraphs 1 through 31, above, are incorporated herein by this reference as if they

were set forth here in their entirety.

33. 40 C.F.R. § 112.7(c) requires owners and operators of a facility to provide appropriate

containment and/or diversionary structures or equipment to prevent a discharge. It

requires that the entire containment system, including walls and floor, must be capable

of containing oil and must be constructed so that any discharge from a primary

containment system, such as a tank, will not escape the containment system before

cleanup occurs.

34. Respondent failed to provide appropriate general secondary containment, in violation of

40 C.F.R. § 112.7(c), because the secondary containment system was not sufficiently

impervious and/or capable of preventing oil from escaping the containment system

before cleanup could occur. The liner was shredded, ripped, or otherwise compromised

in multiple locations within the Facility's tank farm secondary facility.

COUNT II 

(Bulk Storage Installations: Failure to Provide Sufficient Secondary Containment) 

35. Paragraphs 1 through 31, above, are incorporated herein by this reference as if they

were set forth here in their entirety.

36. 40 C.F.R. § 112.8(c)(2) of the Oil Pollution Prevention Regulations requires owners and

operators of an onshore facility to construct bulk storage tank installations to provide a

secondary means of containment for the entire capacity of the largest single container

and sufficient freeboard to contain precipitation. It requires ensuring that diked areas are

sufficiently impervious to contain discharged oil.

37. Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 112.8(c)(2) by failure to maintain all bulk storage tank

installations to provide a sufficiently impervious means of secondary containment

capable of accounting for the entire capacity of the largest single container and sufficient

freeboard to contain precipitation.

COUNT Ill

(Bulk Storage Installations: Failure to Comply with Industry Standards for Integrity Testing) 

38. Paragraphs 1 through 31, above, are incorporated herein by this reference as if they

were set forth here in their entirety.

39. 40 C.F.R. § 112.8(c)(6) requires the owner or operator of onshore facilities to test or

inspect each aboveground container for integrity on a regular schedule and whenever

making material repairs, in accordance with industry standards. It requires that owners
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AMY MILLER-
BOWEN

Digitally signed by 
AMY MILLER-BOWEN 
Date: 2024.08.28 
07:31:48 -07'00'
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FINAL ORDER 

It Is Hereby Ordered that this Consent Agreement and Final Order (EPA Docket No. CWA-09-

2024-0083) be entered and that Respondent shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of ONE

HUNDRED THREE-THOUSAND AND THREE-HUNDRED SEVENTY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($103,377) in 

accordance with the terms of this Consent Agreement and Final Order. 

Beatrice Wong 

Regional Judicial Officer 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I hereby certify the attached Consent Agreement and Final Order in the matter of Aloha 
Petroleum LLC (Docket No. CWA-09-2024-0083) has been filed by Regional Hearing Clerk, and 
that a true and correct copy was served on the parties, via electronic mail, as indicated below: 

RESPONDENT:   Jennifer Metrose 
General Manager, Terminals 
Aloha Petroleum LLC 
1001 Bishop Street, Suite 1300 
Honolulu, HI 96813 
JMetrose@alohagas.com 

        
COMPLAINANT:  Jon Owens 

Assistant Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX  
Hazardous Waste Section I (ORC-3-1) 
75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
Owens.Jon@epa.gov   

 
 Peter Reich 
 Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division 
 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
Reich.Peter@epa.gov 

 
   
 
 
                                  

             Ponly Tu                         
Regional Hearing Clerk 

            U.S. EPA – Region IX 
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